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HISTORY OF THE INDUSTRIAL ARTS DEPARTMENT
AT WESTERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY

The ye2ar 1920 marked the beginning of Industrial Arts at Western
Kentucky University. It was in September of that year that Mr. L. T.
Smith came to Western to set up an Industrial Arts program (called
Manual Training) and to direct athletics. Mr. Smith had graduated from
Sanborn High School in Sanborn, Iowa, and had received the B. S, degree
with a major in Industrial Arxts from Bradley Polytechnic Institute,
now Bradley University, Peoria, Illinoils. Before coming to Western,
he taught for a short time at Washington, Iowa and was associated with
the Trades and Industry and the UBnginesering Extension departments at
Iowa State College. He received the M. A. degrez in Industrial Arts
_%rom Peabody College, Nashville, Tennessee, in 1931,

The first home of the Industrial Arts Department (then referred to
as the Manual Training program) was an army training barrack. One of
two such sfructures which stood on the present site of the training
school. Later the Department was moved to where the éresent Margie
Helm library is located. Initially, the courses offered were Bench
Wood, Machine Woodwork, Mechanical Drawing, Architectural Drawing,
Concrete Work, and Design. Since 1929, course cfferings have expandad
and student enrollment has increased steadily.

On January 2, 1928 the temporary Industrial Arts building burned.

The present threz story stone building was built and ready for occupancy




by tha spring semester of 1029, iIn 1965 approximat2ly 4400 square feet
of floor space were acquired in the Margie Helm libxary to take care of
expanding enrollments.

“hen the new building was Ffirst occﬁpied, another teacher was neaded.
Mr. T. J. Acrant; a graduste of Peabody College was employed and taught
through the spring and susner térms, aftzr which he‘}eft‘to return to
Peabody. 1In the fall of 1929, Mr. Carl Rarnes, a graduate of Western,
was employed asnan instructor to replace Mr., Arant. Mr. Barnes
graduated from Woestern in 1925 and obtained a M. A. degree from
Colorado State Teachers Collega. Mro Smith and Mr. Barnes taught all
classes in the department until 1933, At this time, Mr. Stansbury
was hired as a part-time instructor. He taught Elementary Industrial
Arts courses and also coached freshman athletica.

As the department céntinued to expand another teacher was necessary

in 1935, My, Walter B. Nalbach, a student at Western, did part-time

‘teaching in the department in 1033 and 1934, He returned to “estern

as a ful% time instructor in the lfall of 1935 after teaching one year
in Louisville schools. Mr. Nalbach received the #. A, Ffrom the
University of Kontucky in 1937, The number of instructors in the
department remained at threz until 1948, With th2 xcaeption of three
years during World wWar II, from August 1541 until October 1945, Mr.
Nalbach was temporarily detached from western and was connected with
the U, S. Naval Training Service at Morechead State College and with
the Armored Forces School at Fort nox, Kentucky as an instructor

trainer and supervisor of instruction in the Wheel Vehicle Department.,
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In September, 1948, Mr, H, 8. Clark was added to tha staff,
Mr. Clark taught in the department until the spring of 1962. He lart
tha departﬁent to accept a position as the director of buildings and
grounds at “Western,

After 37 yzars as a foundex, profzssor, and h2ad of the Industrial
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s department, My, L. T, Snith rzlinquishad his position in 1957, at

which time hz was appointaed as the Physical Plant Administrator . for
the University. Mr. Walter B. Nalbach was selectad to ze2nlace him as
head of the department. The same yzar Mr. Owan Lawson was 2np loyved to
complate the ztaff, Aftar th; department expanded and th2 enrollment
increasad, Mr, Perry Young and Iir, Hohdy Perkinz weras addad to thne

staff, The presaent Industrial Arts faculty consists of Mr. Jelf Crisp

1862, Dr, Holland 3, Boaz 1062, Dr. Donald I, “ondt 1362, ir, Srank

Pittman 1960, Mr., %Wandal Dyve 1985, Mr. Howard Lowrsv 1066. and M, SR
» 3 ? .

Walter B. Walbach 19853, In 1967 the staff consisted of nine full

-y 1
“tima faculty members, two graduate assistants, plus two Part-time
h
Faculty nmenbars,
The Arts and Jrafts Club, an organizatinn for Industrial Arts

5

students, was organized in 1925, In January, 1728 awfﬁre cdestroyad
all of its papers incliuding the Constitution and by-laws, and the club
did not neet for a year. In Docamber, 1923 it was reorganized under

a n2v Zonstitution and has functionad roagularly since that tine.
Quoting Irom the Constitution of tha club, the objactives of the

organization shall be: '"(l) to unite into one organization thosc

persons interested in Industrial Arts and Vocational Zducation (2} te




develop a spirit of fellowship and group cooperation (3) to davelop
practical skills in the administration and supervision of social and
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professional organizations'. To this date, thz clud meets thz €
Tuaesday of each month.
The nuuber of students enrollad in the departmont has grown from

15 in 1920 to an average of 893 per semestar. Although the dapartmant
was well-organized and aexparisnced steady gcowth, it was not un{il

930 that three students graduated with the Baccalauresate degres with
a maior in Industrial fArts. The Industrial Arts Ji scinline appzals

mostly to boys; howavar, several girls have taken Industrial Arts

subjacts. Hlss qnita Au f, from test Point, Xentucky was the First |

girl to graduate as an Industrial Arts majorlin the state of Loeniucky.
5he raeceived har dagrez in 1965 and is prasently teaching Industrial
Arts and Art in th2 Springfield, Mentucky school system,

:‘ In 1920, a 24 hour major was available for thosa studants
interzestpd in t2aching Industrial Arts. In 1936, a 48 hour Araa of
Concezntration in Industrial Acts was developad and in 1264 the 36 hour
major with an option of a second major or winor was approved, sinca

1930, nmore than B0U students have graduated as majors or sinors in

Industrial Arts Sducation, In addition, a two-year and a four-year
Industrial Technology curriculws was developed in 1762, In the surumaer
of 1067, thoe Doard of Ragants of Western Kentucky Univessity anproved
a two-yezar and a four-year degre: progras for the preparation of

Vocational-Industrial and Technical Teachers, In inplawenting the

various programs, naw coursas hava been devaloped pariodically.




Us2 of the Slide Rule was taught for the first time in 1962. Technical
Drafting I in 1963, Technical Drafting II in 1964, Hlectricity in 1960,
Slectronics in 1962, and Surveying in 1962, Hvening classes were also
taught as part of the Community Collage in 1962,

3ince 1941, it has been possible to obtain thz M, A, degree at
Western with a minor in Industrial Arts. In 1959 a-graduate courses
in the Philosophy of Industrial Sducation and Industrial Sducation
Curriculum were introduced. In the year 19632, a graduate courss
entitled Industrial Arts for Zlementary Teachers was taught for the First
time., 1In 1965 tha Spplied Problem courses ware resolved and included;
Advanced Drafting, Industrial Design, Industrial Zlectricity and
flectronics, ‘oodwork Technology, OSraphic Arts, Advanced Machine Shop,
Power and Auto Machanics, Metal Tachnology, Problems and Crafts,
LCeramics and Plastics, and Seneral Shop. In connection with the
“graduate program, in 1957, Mr. Howard Lowrey and Mc, Holbert Millev
ware thep first graduate assistants used in the Industrial Acrts instruct-
ional program, 3ince than about 20 araduate students have served in
this capacity. L

Western Industrial Arts graduates are found in many occupations,
Many of the graduates teach Industrial Arts on Junior and Sanior High
lavels, somoe are professors in collogss and universities, they ssrve
as engineers, junior 2ngineers, principals, superintendents of schools
and in rapy other areas $oo numerous to mention here,

This is an abbreviated history of the Industrial Arts Department




at “Western. A book could ba written about tha many interesting
activities aml the devalopment of the department and its tradition.
The Industrial Arts department is daeply. indabtad to its faculty and

students for their dadication, leovalty, and hard work which contributed

so nuch to the developrant of thoe dapartment.
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HISTORY OF THE INDUSTRIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

The Indust;ial Bducation Depaxtmeﬁt has its begianning in
1920, Mz, L, T, Saith was the depariment's founder and served
as professor and head of the department unill 1957, Mr. Walter
Nalbach assumed deparimental leadership in 1957 and has served

as professor and departiment head since that time,

Physical Facilities: 7The department was first housed in

an army training barrack adjacent to the present Cherry Hall
clasgroom building. It was later woved to a temporary struc-
ture which was located on the present site of the Margie Helm
Library., During the 1928-29 school yeax the present building
was coastructed and occupied. In 1965 approximateliy 4400
square faet of floor space was acguized in the Margic Helm
Library to expand Ffacilitiss, During the 1968-69 school year
the department acquired and renovated the old Home Economics
Buildipg for additional classroonm and laboratory space.
[29 Faculty: Mr. Smith was the only full-time Tfaculiy mamEber
in the department until Mr. Carl Barnes was empleyed in 1029,
A third full-time Faculty wember was ewmployed in thé fall of
1635, Mr. Walter Nalbach. These threes faculty mewmbers served
alone until 1948 when Mr., H. B. Clark was added to the staff
as a full-time member. The number of faculiyv wembers remained
at four until 1957. Since 1957 enrollment increases and pro-
gram changes have made 1% necessary 1o increase the staff to

resent size, twelve Ffull-time Faculty members. Graduate
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assistants were first used in the instructional program in
1960. B8ince then over iwenty-five assistantships have been
granted. Three graduate students are sexving in this capa-

city at the present time.

Curriculums From its beginning as a manual training

program comsisting of woodworking, drawing, concrete work,
and design, the curriculum has expandaed te include the Ffollowe
ing programss

Industrial Arts Teacher Educatien (1925)

Graduate Minor in Industrial Arts (1041)

industrial Technology (2 year program) {1962)

Industrial Technology (4 year program)(lgﬁz)

Vocational~Industrial & Technical Teacher Education
(4 year program) {1967)

Vocational-industrial & Technical Teacher Bducation
{2 year program) {1967)

Masier of Axts in Industrial Education {1971)

Technggal course offerings mnow include: metals, woods, plasticsz,
drafting, design, power machanics, electricity-electronics,
graphic arts,

Mame: At first the department was referred te as the ES%Q
Manual Training Program. In 1922 the name was changed to théﬂ
Manual Axts Department. The name was changed again to the
Industrial Arts Department in 1928. The gxpansion of programs

brought about another change in 1968 to the TIndustrial Bduca~

tion Repartment.




Enrollment: The number of students enrelled in the

departiment has grown frow 15 in 1920 fo a fall semester 1971
enrollment of 966, The first two students graduated from the
department with baccalaureate degrees and majors in Industrial
Arts in 1925, During the 196970 school year the department
graduated 75 baccalaureaie degrees and 5 masters degrees.
Western®s industrial education graduates are found in
wany occupations. Many of them teach industrial arts on the
junior and. senior high school level, some are professors in
colleges and universities,.othexs gerve as engineers, junior
engineers, technicians, school principals and superintendents,

to mention but a few, ;j }
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